
 

 

 
 

 
 

County Hall 
Rhadyr 

Usk 
NP15 1GA 

 
Monday, 30 November 2020 

 

Notice of meeting  
 

Children and Young People Select Committee 
 

Tuesday, 8th December, 2020 at 10.00 am, 
Remote Meeting 

 

Please note that a pre meeting will be held 30 minutes prior to the start of the 
meeting for members of the committee.  

 

AGENDA 
 

Item No Item Pages 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence 

 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest 

 
 

3.   Public Open Forum 

 
 

4.   Review of Play Provision: To consider the findings of an assessment of 
play areas in Monmouthshire and consider the way forward 

 

To Follow 

5.   Welsh Medium Education: To discuss the strategic plan for Welsh 
Education 

 

To Follow 

6.   Children and Young People Select Committee Forward Work Plan 

 
1 - 2 

7.   Council and Cabinet Work Planner 

 
3 - 56 

8.   To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting 

 
57 - 66 

9.   To confirm the date and time of the next meeting 

 
 

 
Paul Matthews 

 
Chief Executive 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 



 

 

MONMOUTHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
CYNGOR SIR FYNWY 

 

THE CONSTITUTION OF THE COMMITTEE IS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 
County Councillors: L.Brown 

M.Groucutt 
L.Jones 
M.Lane 
M. Powell 
T.Thomas 
J.Watkins 
F. Taylor 

  
 Added Members 

Members voting on Education Issues 
Only 
 

 Vacant Seat (Roman Catholic Church) 
Vacant Seat (Co-optee) 
Elizabeth Thomas 

  
 Added Members 

Non Voting 
 
Fay Middleton (Trade Union) 
Maggie Harris 
Peter Strong NEU 

 
Public Information 

 
Access to paper copies of agendas and reports 
A copy of this agenda and relevant reports can be made available to members of the public 
attending a meeting by requesting a copy from Democratic Services on 01633 644219. Please 
note that we must receive 24 hours notice prior to the meeting in order to provide you with a hard 
copy of this agenda.  
 
Watch this meeting online 
This meeting can be viewed online either live or following the meeting by visiting 
www.monmouthshire.gov.uk or by visiting our Youtube page by searching MonmouthshireCC. 
 
Welsh Language 
The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public through the medium of Welsh or 
English.  We respectfully ask that you provide us with adequate notice to accommodate your 
needs. 

 

http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/


 

 

Aims and Values of Monmouthshire County Council 
 
Our purpose 
 
Building Sustainable and Resilient Communities 
 
Objectives we are working towards 
 

 Giving people the best possible start in life 

 A thriving and connected county 

 Maximise the Potential of the natural and built environment 

 Lifelong well-being 

 A future focused council 
 

Our Values 
 
Openness. We are open and honest. People have the chance to get involved in decisions that 

affect them, tell us what matters and do things for themselves/their communities. If we cannot do 

something to help, we’ll say so; if it will take a while to get the answer we’ll explain why; if we can’t 

answer immediately we’ll try to connect you to the people who can help – building trust and 

engagement is a key foundation. 

Fairness. We provide fair chances, to help people and communities thrive. If something does not 

seem fair, we will listen and help explain why. We will always try to treat everyone fairly and 

consistently. We cannot always make everyone happy, but will commit to listening and explaining 

why we did what we did.  

Flexibility. We will continue to change and be flexible to enable delivery of the most effective and 

efficient services. This means a genuine commitment to working with everyone to embrace new 

ways of working. 

Teamwork. We will work with you and our partners to support and inspire everyone to get involved 

so we can achieve great things together. We don’t see ourselves as the ‘fixers’ or problem-solvers, 

but we will make the best of the ideas, assets and resources available to make sure we do the 

things that most positively impact our people and places. 



 

 

Monmouthshire Scrutiny Committee Guide 

Role of the Pre-meeting 
1. Why is the Committee scrutinising this? (background, key issues) 
2. What is the Committee’s role and what outcome do Members want to achieve? 
3. Is there sufficient information to achieve this? If not, who could provide this?  
- Agree the order of questioning and which Members will lead 
- Agree questions for officers and questions for the Cabinet Member 

Questions for the Meeting 

Scrutinising Performance 
 
1. How does performance compare with previous 

years?  Is it better/worse? Why? 
 

2. How does performance compare with other 
councils/other service providers?  Is it 
better/worse? Why? 

 
3. How does performance compare with set 

targets?  Is it better/worse? Why?  

 
4. How were performance targets set?  Are they 

challenging enough/realistic? 
 

5. How do service users/the public/partners view 
the performance of the service? 

 
6. Have there been any recent audit and 

inspections? What were the findings? 

 
7. How does the service contribute to the 

achievement of corporate objectives?   
 

8. Is improvement/decline in performance linked to 
an increase/reduction in resource?  What 
capacity is there to improve?   

Scrutinising Policy 
 

1. Who does the policy affect ~ directly and 
indirectly?  Who will benefit most/least?   
 

2. What is the view of service 
users/stakeholders?  Do they believe it will 
achieve the desired outcome? 

 
3. What is the view of the community as a whole 

- the ‘taxpayer’ perspective? 
 

4. What methods were used to consult with 
stakeholders?  Did the process enable all 
those with a stake to have their say? 

 
5. What practice and options have been 

considered in developing/reviewing this policy? 
What evidence is there to inform what works? 

 
6. Does this policy align to our corporate 

objectives, as defined in our corporate plan? 
 

7. Have all relevant sustainable development, 
equalities and safeguarding implications been 
taken into consideration?  For example, what 
are the procedures that need to be in place to 
protect children? 

 
8. How much will this cost to implement and what 

funding source has been identified? 

 
9. How will performance of the policy be 

measured and the impact evaluated.  

Questions for the Committee to conclude… 

Do we have the necessary information to form conclusions/make recommendations to the executive, 
council, other partners?  If not, do we need to: 

(i) Investigate the issue in more detail? 
(ii) Obtain further information from other witnesses – Executive Member, independent expert, 

members of the local community, service users, regulatory bodies… 
(iii) Agree further actions to be undertaken within a timescale/future monitoring report… 

General Questions…. 

Empowering Communities 

 How are we involving local communities and empowering them to design and deliver services to suit 
local need? 

 Do we have regular discussions with communities about service priorities and what level of service the 
council can afford to provide in the future? 

 



 

 

Service Demands 

 How will policy and legislative change affect how the council operates? 

 Have we considered the demographics of our council and how this will impact on service delivery and 
funding in the future? 

 
Financial Planning 

 Do we have robust medium and long-term financial plans in place? 

 Are we linking budgets to plans and outcomes and reporting effectively on these? 
 
Making savings and generating income 

 Do we have the right structures in place to ensure that our efficiency, improvement and 
transformational approaches are working together to maximise savings? 

 How are we maximising income?  Have we compared other council’s policies to maximise income and 
fully considered the implications on service users?  

 Do we have a workforce plan that takes into account capacity, costs, and skills of the actual versus 
desired workforce? 



 

 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Monmouthshire’s Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 2020-21 
 
 

Children and Young People’s Select Committee 

Meeting Date Subject Purpose of Scrutiny Responsibility Type of Scrutiny  

Special Meeting 25th 
November 2020 

Homeless Briefing Report and 
Emerging Proposals for 
Future Delivery of 
Homelessness” 

To consider a position report on homelessness ~ our 
demand, gaps and proposals to address them. 

Ian Bakewell Position Paper 

Additional Learning Needs 
Strategy 

Update on the progress in delivering the strategy. Will Mclean 
Sharon Randall Smith 

Performance 
Monitoring 

8th December 2020 Review of Play Provision To consider the findings of an assessment of play areas 
in Monmouthshire and to consider the way forward. 

Mike Moran 
Matthew Lewis 

Policy Development 

Welsh Education Strategic 
Plan 

To receive an annual update on the strategic plan for 
welsh medium education. 

Sharon Randall Smith Policy Development/ 
Performance 
Monitoring 

19th January 2021 Budget Scrutiny Scrutiny of the budget proposals for 2021/22. Peter Davies Budget Scrutiny 

Special Meeting mid-
February 2021 

EAS Business Plan    

Free School Meals Strategy    

25th March 2021     

20th April 2021     

 

Future Agreed Work Programme Items: 

Schools items: 
 

 Inclusion updates – wellbeing/attitudes to learning/supporting the pupil voice 

 Post 16 education provision/Apprenticeships/Engagement and progression and support for those Not in Education or Employment 
 
Non-education issues: 
 

 Support for Foster Carers ~ Edge of Care Team and BASE.  Bringing in Foster Carers 

P
age 1

A
genda Item

 6



Monmouthshire’s Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 2020-21 
 
 

 Engage with the Youth Forum ~ Discuss their priorities and key concerns 

 Young Carers Strategy Update 

 Childcare sufficiency – annual update 

 Well-being reporting (obesity, eating disorders etc) 

 Family Support Services ~ Young People’s Mental Health Support in Schools: Chair to liaise with Chief Officer 

 Children with Complex Needs and play provision. 
 

Suggestions from the Chief Officer:  
 

 ADL Transformation ~ new legislation and practice early next year. Regional leads to provide and input. Readiness assessments 

 Ongoing Transformation between health board and regional partnership boards. Intermediate Care funding and in particular, supporting wellbeing 
needs.  

 Inclusion in schools (primary and secondary), Behaviour policy. CAMS support ~ early presentation.  

 Risk areas, financial position and budgetary pressures, Schools Finance Forum work  

 2 years’ delivery plan for Children’s Services ~ understanding good practice and the significant drivers on schools and social services 

 Chief Officer Annual Reports and Corporate Parenting 
 
 
 
 

P
age 2



Committee / 

Decision Maker

Meeting date / 

Decision due
Subject Purpose Author

Date item added to 

the planner

Date item originally 

scheduled for 

decision

Council 01/10/23

LDP for Adoption

Mark Hand 23/01/20

Council 01/02/23

LDP submission for examination 

Mark Hand 23/01/20

Council 01/07/22

LDP Deposit Plan endorsement for consultation Endorsement of Deposit Plan

Mark Hand 23/01/20

Cabinet 01/09/21

LDP Preferred Strategy endorsement post 

consultation 

Mark Hand 20/05/20

Cabinet 02/06/21

Budget Monitoring outturn report The purpose of this report is to provide Members with 

information on the forecast outturn position of the 

Authority at end of month reporting for 2020/21 

financial year
Peter Davies/Jon Davies 02/04/20

Council 01/05/21

LDP Preferred Strategy endorsement for 

consultation 

Mark Hand 21/09/20

Cabinet 14/04/21

Welsh Church Fund Working Group meeting
The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2020/21 - meeting 9 held on 4th March 

2021

Dave Jarrett 02/04/20

Council 11/03/21

Council Tax Resolution Report

Ruth Donovan 02/04/20

Monmouthshire County Council is required to publish a forward plan of all key decisions to be taken. Council and Cabinet items will only be considered for decision if they have been included on the planner no later than the 

month preceding the meeting, unless the item is considered urgent.  

Cabinet, Council and Individual Cabinet Member Decisions (ICMD) Forward Plan

P
age 3

A
genda Item

 7



Cabinet 03/03/21

Play Sufficiency Action Plan 

Mike Moran 14/10/20

Cabinet 03/03/21

•	EAS Business Plan 

Sharon Randall Smith 21/09/20

Council 03/03/21

Final revenue and capital budget proposals 

Peter Davies 21/09/20

Cabinet 03/02/21

	Abergavenny CRC (Racecourse Farm) 

Mike Moran 14/10/20

Cabinet 03/02/21

Welsh Church Fund Working Group meeting
The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2020/21 - meeting 8 held on 14th 

January 2021

Dave Jarrett 02/04/20

Cabinet 03/02/21

Social Justice Strategy Update 

Cath Fallon 17/09/20

Cabinet 03/02/21

Active Travel Network Maps

Paul Sullivan 13/11/20

Cabinet 03/02/21

Review of Home to School Transport

Will Mclean 13/11/20

Cabinet 03/02/21

Land at Bencroft Lane, Knollbury 

Mike Moran 26/08/20

Cabinet 03/02/21
Review of Monmouthshire’s Destination 

Management Plan 2017-2020 

Purpose: to approve the revised Destination 

Development Plan 
Matthew Lewis 22/09/20

P
age 4



Cabinet 20/01/21
•	Draft revenue and capital budget proposals for 

consultation 
Peter Davies 21/09/20

ICMD 15/01/21 Museum Service Collection Review 

To propose the deaccessioning of and disposal 

actions for the proposed items in line with Section 4 of 

the Museums Association Disposal Toolkit 

Matthew Lewis 22/09/20

Council 14/01/21

Council Tax Reduction Scheme

Ruth Donovan 07/04/20

Council 14/01/21

Annual Safeguarding Report

Jane Rodgers 21/09/20

IMCD 13/01/21

Approval on Local Government (Wales) Act 1994 - 

The Local Authorities (Precepts) (Wales) 

Regulations 1995

Jon Davies

ICMD 13/01/21 SPG S106 Supplementary Planning Guidance  To clarify how S106 contributions are calculated Mark Hand 01/05/19

Cabinet 06/01/21

Budget Monitoring Report - month 7 (period 2)
The purpose of this report is to provide Members with 

information on the forecast outturn position of the 

Authority at end of month reporting for 2020/21 

financial year.

Peter Davies/Jon Davies 02/04/20

Cabinet 06/01/21 Play Area Assessments and Future Play Area Policy 
to advise members of play area assessments carried 

out last year and suggest a rationalisation of provision
Matthew Lewis 22/09/20

Cabinet 06/01/21

RIPA Policy

Matt Phillips 21/10/20

Cabinet 06/01/21

Longterm Homelessness Solutions

Deferred from 2/9/20 Mark Hand 07:00

P
age 5



Cabinet 06/01/21 Gypsy Traveller Accommodation Assessment 2020 Mark Hand 23/06/20

ICMD 23/12/20 Museum object disposal Rachael Rogers 30/10/20

ICMD 23/12/20 Wye Valley AONB Management Plan 2020-2025 
To approve the review of the Wye Valley AONB 

Management Plan 2020-2025 
Matthew Lewis 22/09/20

Cabinet 16/12/20

Welsh Church Fund Working Group meeting
The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2020/21 - meeting 7 held on 3rd 

December 2020

Dave Jarrett 02/04/20

Cabinet 16/12/20

Proposal to pause work on a proposed Development 

Company

Deb Hill Howells 21/10/20

Cabinet 16/12/20

Local Housing Market Assessment Update

Mark Hand 04/11/20

Cabinet 16/12/20

Growth Options to Cabinet for endorsement for non-

statutory consultation 

Mark Hand 21/09/20

Cabinet 16/12/20

Review of school places in Caldicot town

Matthew Jones 21/10/20

ICMD 09/12/20 Shire Hall/Monmouth Museum Paul Jordan Matthew Lewis deferred from 11/11

IMCD 09/12/20

Consultation on Local Government (Wales) Act 

1994 - The Local Authorities (Precepts) (Wales) 

Regulations 1995

To seek Member approval of the proposals 

for consultation purposes regarding 

payments to precepting authorities during 

the 2021/22 financial year as required by 

statute.

Jon Davies

P
age 6



IMCD 09/12/20

Council Tax base and associated matters
To agree the Council Tax Base figure for submission 

to the Welsh Government, together with the collection 

rate to be applied for 2021/22 and to make other 

necessary related statutory decisions

Ruth Donovan 02/04/20

Council 03/12/20

Corporate Joint Committee: Consultation Response’ To discuss and endorse a council response to 

consultation about draft regulations which will create 

four regional Corporate Joint Committees. These are 

a statutory mechanism for regional collaboration by 

local government.

Matt Gatehouse 16/10/20

Council 03/12/20

Updated Asset Investment Policy

Peter Davies 21/09/20

Council 03/12/20

Statutory Director of Social Services annual report

Julie Boothroyd 14/08/20

Cabinet 02/12/20

InFuSe

Cath Fallon 10/11/20

Cabinet 02/12/20

Clydach Ironworks Enhancement Scheme 

Revision/S106 Funding, Cae Meldon

Matthew Lewis 22/09/20

ICMD 25/11/20 Homesearch Allocations Policy and Amendments INCLUDED ON 11/11 AGENDA Louise Corbett 22/10/20

ICMD 11/11/20
WELSH LANGUAGE COMMISSIONER’S 

MONITORING WORK 2019-20 
Matt Gatehouse

ICMD 11/11/20

LDP Annual Monitoring Report/ and Annual 

Performance Report for Planning Service

Rachel Lewis/Phil Thomas 19/10/20

ICMD 11/11/20

Housing Register Review

Mark Hand 23/06/20

P
age 7



Cabinet 04/11/20

Outdoor Adventure Service 

Marie Bartlett/Ian Saunders 13/10/20

Cabinet 04/11/20

Public Service Ombudsman’s annual letter 

To provide Cabinet with a copy of the Public Service 

Ombudsman’s annual letter to inform understanding 

of the council’s performance in handling complaints 

Matt Gatehouse 09/09/20

Cabinet 04/11/20

Welsh Church Fund working group
The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2020/21 - meeting 4 held on 22nd 

October 2020

Dave Jarrett 02/04/20

Cabinet 04/11/20

Three Fields Site Magor – Lease Arrangements

Mike Moran 14/10/20

Cabinet 04/11/20

Coronavirus Strategic Aims: Progress and Next 

Steps To provide an overview of progress against the 

strategic aims set by Cabinet in July, and 

communicate an updated version of the plan on a 

page

Matt Gatehouse 26/08/20

Cabinet 04/11/20 Section 106 Funding – The Hill, Abergavenny Mike Moran 20/02/19

Council 22/10/20

Corporate Plan Annual Report 2019/20

Richard Jones 25/08/20

Council 22/10/20

MCC Audited Accounts (formal approval)

To notify Council of completed Audit process and 

resultant accounts - To go to Audit Committee
Peter Davies/Jon Davies 02/04/20

Council 22/10/20

ISA 260 report - MCC Accounts - attachment above

Deferred from september Peter Davies/Jon Davies 02/04/20

Council 22/10/20

Future Data Hall and Data Hosting Arrangements

Peter Davies 16/09/20

P
age 8



Council 22/10/20

LDP revised Delivery Agreement including LDP 

timetable and community involvement strategy 

Craig O'Connor 03/07/20

Cabinet 21/10/20

Revenue and Capital Monitoring 2020/21 Forecast 

Outturn Statement – Month 5

Peter Davies 16/09/20

Cabinet 21/10/20

MTFP and Budget Process 2021/22 to 2024/25

Peter Davies 16/09/20

Cabinet 21/10/20

Review of Garden Waste Service

Laura Carter 23/07/20

ICMD 14/10/20

PUBLIC TOILET PROVISION - GRANTS TO 

LOCAL COUNCILS  AND FUTURE PROVISION IN 

ABERGAVENNY DEFERRED Roger Hoggins 25/09/20

ICMD 14/10/20

Closure of Capita Gwent Consultancy and 

distribution of Reserves

Roger Hoggins 25/09/20

ICMD 14/10/20

Extension of PSPO To seek approval to extend 

three Public Spaces Protection 

Orders (PSPO) in respect of 

Bailey Park, Abergavenny; 

Abergavenny Lower, 

Andrew Mason 23/09/20

Cabinet 07/10/20

Future Data Hall and Data Hosting Arrangements

Peter Davies 16/09/20

Cabinet 07/10/20

Welsh Church Fund Working Group
The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2020/21 - meeting 2 held on 28th July 

2020 and meeting 3 held on 10th September 2020.

Dave Jarrett 02/04/20

Cabinet 07/10/20

Future Provision of HWRCs including the closure of 

Usk recycling centre 

Carl Touhig 14/09/20

P
age 9



ICMD 23/09/20

SCM Collaboration with TCBC Heritage Services

Amy Longford 24/08/20

ICMD 23/09/20 SCM Collaboration with TCBC Heritage Services Amy Longford 24/08/20

Council 10/09/20

Audit Committee Annual Report

Philip White 11/08/20

Cabinet 29/07/20

Digital Infrastructure Action Plan 

Cath Fallon 08/07/20

Cabinet 29/07/20

‘Revenue and Capital Monitoring 2020/21 Forecast 

Outturn Statement – Month 2

Jonathan S Davies 12/06/20

Cabinet 29/07/20

Coronavirus Risk Management Update’  

Peter Davies 10/07/20

Cabinet 29/07/20

Welsh Church Fund Working Group meeting
The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2020/21 - meeting 1 held on 30th June 

2020

Dave Jarrett 02/04/20

Cabinet 29/07/20

Outdoor Education - Service Update

Marie Bartlett 09/07/20

Cabinet 29/07/20

Public Toilets

Cabinet 29/07/20

5G Rural test bed

Cath Fallon/Frances O'Brien

P
age 10



Council 16/07/20

Climate Emergency Update

Hazel Clatworthy 10/06/20

Council 16/07/20

CEx Report 

Matt Phillips 18/06/20

Council 16/07/20

Cabinet decision re Gilwern

Matt Phillips 27/05/20

ICMD 08/07/20 Archaeology Planning Advice Adoption post-guidance Mark Hand 19/09/19 Deferred

Cabinet 01/07/20

COVID-19 Evaluation of Recovery Phase and 

Establishing Aims for Response Stage 

17/06/20

Cabinet 01/07/20

Home to School Transport Policy 

Deferred 20/05/20

Cabinet 01/07/20

Household Waste Recycling Centres

Deferred 20/05/20

Cabinet 17/06/20

Revenue and Capital Monitoring Outturn

To provide Members with information on the outturn 

position of the Authority for the financial year
Peter Davies/Jon Davies 02/02/20

Council 04/06/20

Licensing Act Policy

Linda O'Gorman

Council 04/06/20

Estyn Report

Will Mclean

P
age 11



Council 04/06/20

Safeguarding Covid19 Position Statement

Julie Boothroyd

Council 04/06/20 Chief Officer, CYP Annual Report’ Will Mclean 11/03/20

Council 04/06/20 Refit Programme Ian Hoccom 28/02/20

Cabinet 27/05/20

Safeguarding

Julie Boothroyd

Cabinet 27/05/20

Active Travel and Town Centres

Paul Sullivan

Council 14/05/20 Constitution Review Matt Phillips 14/08/19

Cabinet 06/05/20 Welsh Church Fund Working Group

The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2020/21 - meeting 1 held on 2nd April 

2020

Dave Jarrett 02/04/20

ICMD 08/04/20
GUARANTEED INTERVIEWS FOR CARE 

LEAVERS
Gareth James 23/03/20

ICMD 08/04/20
Momouthshire Registration Service Collaborative 

Working Agreement
Jennifer Walton 23/03/20

Cabinet 01/04/20
Staffing re-alignment: Community Hubs and Contact 

Centre
Matt Gatehouse 11/03/20

P
age 12



Cabinet 01/04/20 EAS Business Plan Will Mclean 04/03/20

Cabinet 01/04/20 Guaranteed Interview Scheme for Care Leavers Gareth James 28/02/20

ICMD 25/03/20
Non Domestic Rates: High Street and Retail Rate 

Relief 2020/21

for approval of the adoption of a High Street and 

Retail Rate Relief Scheme for 2020/21, in accordance 

with Welsh Government guidance.

Ruth Donovan 12/02/20

ICMD 25/03/20 Contract Extension Tracey Harry 14/02/20

Council 05/03/20 Pay Policy Sally Thomas 23/01/20

Council 05/03/20 Annual Safeguarding Report Julie Boothroyd 06/02/20

Council 05/03/20 Strategic Equality Plan Alan Burkitt 26/09/19

Council 05/03/20 LDP Preferred Strategy Endorsement to consult on Preferred Strategy Mark Hand 23/01/20

Council 05/03/20 Council Tax Resolution To set budget and Council Tax Ruth Donovan 18/04/19

Council 05/03/20 Mid Term Review of the Corporate Plan Matt Gatehouse

P
age 13



Cabinet 04/03/20 Investment Committee Peter Davies 13/02/20

ICMD 26/02/20
CHARGING APPLICANTS FOR THE MONITORING 

OF SECTION 106 AGREEMENTS 
Phil Thomas 06/02/20

ICMD 26/02/20
Non Domestic Rates - Application for Hardship 

Relief
Ruth Donovan 14/01/20

Cabinet 19/02/20
2020/21 Education and Welsh Church Trust Funds 

Investment and Fund Strategies

The purpose of this report is to present to Cabinet for 

approval the 2020/21 Investment and Fund Strategy 

for Trust Funds for which the Authority acts as sole or 

custodian trustee for adoption and to approve the  

2019/20 grant allocation to Local Authority 

beneficiaries of the Welsh Church Fund.

Dave Jarrett 18/04/19

Cabinet 19/02/20 Mid Term Review of the Corporate Plan Matt Gatehouse

Cabinet 19/02/20 Welsh Church Fund Working Group

The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2019/20, meeting 7 held on 5th 

December 2019

Dave Jarrett 18/04/19

Cabinet 19/02/20
Consideration of Final Revenue and Capital Budget 

Proposals
Peter Davies 03/10/19

Cabinet 19/02/20 Proposal to change the school funding formula. Nikki Wellington

Cabinet 19/02/20 Strategic Review of Outdoor Education Marie Bartlett 18/10/20

P
age 14



Cabinet 19/02/20

Rights of Way Improvement Plan (ROWIP) review/ 

Policy Statement - Results of statutory consultation 

and proposed Final Plan

To seek approval of the Review of the ROWIP and 

associated policies
Matthew Lewis 18/07/19

Cabinet 17/02/20

•	Final revenue and capital budget proposals 

Peter Davies 21/09/20

ICMD 29/01/20
Various roads, county wide Amendment No. 1 of 

consolidation order 2019 (part 2)
Paul Keeble 13/01/20

Council 16/01/20 Council Tax Reduction Scheme Ruth Donovan 18/04/19

Council 16/01/20 Mid Term Review of the Corporate Plan Peter Davies 26/09/19

Council 16/01/20 Local Development Plan Preferred Strategy Mark Hand 06/09/19

Council 16/01/20 Constitution Review Matt Phillips 14/08/19

Council 16/01/20 Safeguarding - Annual Report to Council Jane Rodgers 20/06/19

Council 16/01/20 Proposed Development Company Deb Hill-Howells 16/09/19 Deferred

Cabinet 08/01/20
Ethical Employment code of practice - Approval 

Paper Draft
Scott James 08/11/19

P
age 15



Cabinet 08/01/20 Budget Monitoring report - month 7 (period 2)

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with 

information on the forecast outturn position of the 

Authority at end of month reporting for 2019/20 

financial year.

Mark Howcroft 18/04/19

Cabinet 08/01/20 Redundancy implications within MonLife Marie Bartlett 07/11/20

Cabinet 08/01/20 Homelessness Report Deb Hill-Howells 07/11/19

Cabinet 08/01/20 Primary School Places Reiview in Caldicot Matthew Jones 02/10/19

Cabinet 06/01/20

Fixed Play Provision

Mike Moran 26/08/20

Cabinet 20/12/19 ARUP Report Cath Fallon 07/11/19

Cabinet 20/12/19 Draft Revenue and Capital Budget Proposals Peter Davies 26/09/19

Cabinet 20/12/19 Tree management Strategy Update Carl Touhig 16/09/19

Cabinet 20/12/19 Green Infrastructure Strategy To approve the Green Infrastructure Strategy Matt Lewis 18/07/19

Cabinet 20/12/19 Road Safety Strategy Frances O'Brien 16/09/19

P
age 16



Cabinet 20/12/19 Home to School Transport Policy Frances O'Brien 16/09/19

Cabinet 20/12/19 Long Term Household Recycling Carl Touhig 29/01/19

Cabinet 20/12/19
Statutory consultation to establish a new Welsh 

Medium Primary School in Monmouth
Debbie Morgan 15/08/19

IMCD 18/12/19 Council Tax Base 2020/21 and associated matters

To agree the Council Tax Base figure for submission 

to the Welsh Government, together with the collection 

rate to be applied for 2020/21 and to make other 

necessary related statutory decisions

Sue Deacy/Ruth Donovan 18/04/19

ICMD 18/12/19 SPG Landscape
To provide guidance on landscape character to inform 

planning decisions
Mark Hand/Amy Longford 02/05/19

ICMD 18/12/19 SPG archaeology 
To identify three new Archaeologically Sensitive 

Areas
Mark Hand/Amy Longford 01/05/19

ICMD 27/11/19 Museum Review

To seek agreement to implement a staffing 

restructure and new public opening hours following a 

review of the Mueums Service

Matthew Lewis

ICMD 27/11/19 Infill SPG Phil Thomas 06/11/19

ICMD 27/11/19 Structure Change - Outdorr Education Service Ian Saunders 08/11/19 ITEM WITHDRAWN

ICMD 27/11/19 Strategic Lead for Youth Enterprise & Skills Cath Fallon 06/11/19 ITEM WITHDRAWN

P
age 17



ICMD 27/11/19 New Posts within MonLife Marie Bartlett 01/11/19

ICMD 27/11/19 LANDSCAPE SPG Andrew Nevill 31/10/19

ICMD 27/11/19
Sale of land at Llanvair Discoed for use as garden 

land’

To seek consent to dispose of two sections of land in 

Llanvair Discoed to current occupiers for use as 

garden land’

Gareth King/Cllr P Murphy 31/10/19

ICMD 27/11/19
Infill Development Supplementary Planning 

Guidance
For adoption post-consultation Mark Hand 19/09/19

ICMD 13/11/19 CYP staffing structure – ALN Team Nikki Wellington

ICMD 13/11/19
MONLIFE AMENDMENTS TO TEAM 

CONFIGURATIONS
Marie Bartlett

Cabinet 06/11/19 Climate Emergency Action Plan Deferred Matt Gatehouse 16/09/19

Cabinet 06/11/19 Welsh Church Fund Working Group

The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2019/20,meeting 5 held on19th 

September 2019 and meeting 6 held on24th October 

2019

Dave Jarrett 18/04/19

Cabinet 06/11/19 Caldicot Leisure Centre Ian Saunders 16/09/19

Cabinet 06/11/19 Economic Growth Cath Fallon 16/09/19

P
age 18



Cabinet 06/11/19 Section 106 Funding – Penperlleni Mike Moran 20/02/19

Cabinet 06/11/19 Croesonen S106 Off-Site Recreation Funding Mike Moran 30/09/19

Cabinet 06/11/19 Monmouth S106 Off-Site Recreation Funding Mike Moran 30/09/19

Council 24/10/19 Corporate Parenting Annual Report Jane Rodgers 28/08/19

Council 24/10/19
Re-appointment of Monmouthshire Local Access 

Forum

To secure the appointment of members to the 

Monmouthshire Local Access Forum (LAF) for its next 

3 year period

Matt Lewis 18/07/19

Council 24/10/19 Change to Terms of Reference of PSB Select

To approve a wider remit for the PSB Select 

Committee to enable it to focus on broader public 

service activity within Monmouthshire

Hazel Ilett 01/08/19

Council 24/10/19 National Development Framework Mark Hand 06/09/19

Council 24/10/19 Modern Day Slavery & Exploitation Protocol Dave Jones 11/09/19

ICMD 23/10/19 Museums - Collections rationalisation Cllr Paul Jordan Rachael Rogers 07/08/19 deferred to 27/11/19

ICMD 23/10/19 SPG S106 guidance note To clarify how S106 contributions are calculated Mark Hand 01/05/19

P
age 19



ICMD 09/10/19

VARIOUS ROADS, COUNTY WIDE    

AMENDMENT NO.1 OF CONSOLIDATION ORDER 

2019

Paul Keeble 20/09/19

ICMD 09/10/19 Archaeology Planning Advice

Endorsement to consult on this advice note, which 

includes designating new Archaelogicially sensitive 

Areas

Mark Hand 19/09/19

ICMD 09/10/19 Planning Report Rachel Lewis 11/09/19

ICMD 09/10/19
Planning Services - Annual Performance Report 

2018/19
Phil Thomas 11/09/19

Council 19/09/19 Capital Strategy Approval Mark Howcroft 09/08/19

Council 19/09/19 Rights of Way Orders Decision Making

To review rights of way order decision making and 

remove the need for objected public rights of way 

Section 53 Wildlife and Countryside Act and 1980 

Highway Act applications to be approved by ICMD

Matt Lewis 18/07/19

Council 19/09/19 MCC Audited Accounts and ISA 260
To notify Council of completed Audit process and 

resultant accounts - To go to Audit Committee
Mark Howcroft 18/04/19

Council 19/09/19 SE Wales Strategic Development Plan Mark Hand 18/06/19

Council 19/09/19 Corporate Plan Annual Report Richard Jones 19/06/19

Council 19/09/19 Director of Social Services Annual Report Julie Boothroyd 04/06/19

P
age 20



Council 19/09/19 MonLife Tracey Thomas 03/05/19

Cabinet 18/09/19 Decision on the closure of Mounton House School Special Meeting Matthew Lewis 20/05/19

Cabinet 18/09/19 VAT Management arrangements Peter Davies 08/08/19

Cabinet 18/09/19 MTFP and Budget Process

To outline the context and process within which the 

MTFP over the next 4 years and the budget will be 

developed.

Mark Howcroft 18/04/19

ICMD 11/09/19 Proposed acquisition of MOD railway line. Deb Hill Howells/ P Murphy 222/08/19

ICMD 11/09/19 Property Appreciation Equity Release Scheme Ian Bakewell 07/08/19 WITHDRAWN

ICMD 11/09/19 SPG Landscape
To provide guidance on landscape character to inform 

planning decisions
Mark Hand/Amy Longford 02/05/19

ICMD 11/09/19 Skills @ Work Programme

To seek approval for Monmouthshire’s approach to 

delivering this pan-Wales, fully funded, scheme 

designed to enhance skills and increase productivity 

in the workplace, providing opportunities for 

employers in all sectors to gain accredited 

qualifications for their workforce

Richard Drinkwater/Nikki Jones 05/08/19 WITHDRAWN

ICMD 11/09/19 SPG archaeology 
To identify three new Archaeologically Sensitive 

Areas
Mark Hand/Amy Longford 01/05/19

ICMD 11/09/19 Sale of land for Garden use Llanfair Discoed

To seek consent for the sale of the section of the land 

at Llanfair Discoed to the existing leaseholder for use 

as garden land.

Gareth King/Cllr P Murphy 08/08/19

P
age 21



Cabinet 04/09/19 Public Services Ombudsman Annual Report Paul Matthews 07/08/19

Cabinet 04/09/19 Sec 106 Funding; Countryside Sites
To seek approval  for section 106 expenditure on 

various countryside sites
Matthew Lewis 18/07/19

Cabinet 04/09/19 Digital Infrastructure Action Plan Cath Fallon 01/04/19

Cabinet 04/09/19 Windows 10 Laptop Replacement

This report seeks funding for the replacement or 

upgrade of workplace laptop stocks, bringing them up 

to a minimum of Windows 10 operating system and 

meeting our ICT security requirements

Sian Hayward 01/08/19

Cabinet 04/09/19 Digital Infrastructure Action Plan Cath Fallon 08/05/19

Cabinet 04/09/19 School Partnership Agreement Cath Sheen 01/07/19

Cabinet 04/09/19 Restructure of Resources Directorate deferred Peter Davies 07/06/19

Cabinet 04/09/19 Brexit Preparedness Cath Fallon

ICMD 21/08/19 Modern Day Slavery and Exploitation Protocol’ David Jones 01/08/19

ICMD 21/08/19 Insourcing of Engineering Design Service DEFERRED Paul Keeble 01/08/19

P
age 22



ICMD 21/08/19 MonLife - Learning Staffing Establishment

To approve an adjustment to the staffing 

establishment in order to provide business support to 

the MonLife Learning Manager to deliver additonal 

courses to a rnage of groups and individuals

Matt Lewis 18/07/19

ICMD 07/08/19

EMERGENCY PLANNING – BUSINESS 

CONTINUITY MANAGEMENT POLICY 

STATEMENT . 

Julia Detheridge 10/07/19

ICMD 07/08/19 Collaborative Heritage Services Provision  Amy Longford

ICMD 07/08/19 Rural Landscape Development Officer DEFERRED Desiree Mansfield 03/07/19

ICMD 07/08/19 Collaborative Heritage Services Amy Longford 11/07/19

Cabinet 31/07/19
SPG Affordable Housing commuted sums pre 

consultation 

To revise guidance on affordable housing 

contributions, specifically to amend when commuted 

sums are required on small scale developments

mark Hand 01/05/19

Cabinet 31/07/19 Apprentice, Graduate and Intern Strategy Hannah Jones 07/06/19

Cabinet 31/07/19 Restructure of Enterprise Directorate Frances O'Brien 07/06/19

Cabinet 31/07/19
Section 106 monies concerning Gilwern Primary 

School
Matthew Jones 12/07/19

Cabinet 31/07/19
2. Section 106 monies concerning Ysgol Gymraeg Y 

Fenni
Matthew Jones 12/07/19

P
age 23



Cabinet 31/07/19 Welsh Church Fund Working Group

The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2019/20, meeting 4 held on 18th July 

2019

Dave Jarrett 18/04/19

Cabinet 31/07/19 Budget Monitoring report - month 2 (period 1)

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with 

information on the forecast outturn position of the 

Authority at end of month reporting for 2019/20 

financial year.

Mark Howcroft 18/04/19

ICMD 24/07/19

Proposed disposal of land and foul drainage 

easement’ to Edenstone Homes at Penlanlas Farm, 

Old Hereford Road, Abergavenny.

Cllr P Murphy Ben Thorpe 20/06/19

ICMD 24/07/19
The expansion of the Shared Service to include 

Revenues
Ruth Donovan 18/06/19 deferred

ICMD 24/07/19 The Social Housing Grant Programme Louise Corbett 02/05/19 deferred

ICMD 24/07/19 SPG S106 guidance note To clarify how S106 contributions are calculated Mark Hand 01/05/19

ICMD 24/07/19 SPG Infill Development
To provide planning guidance for dealing with infill 

and backland development
Mark Hand/David Wong 01/05/19

Council 18/07/19 Statement of Accounts

The purpose of this report is to volunteer a pilot

change in the approval process for Statement of

Accounts, recognising earlier publication deadlines

are not conducive with existing meeting cycles.

Mark Howcroft 09/07/19

Council 18/07/19 Audit Committee Annual Report Phillip White 10/06/19

ICMD 10/07/19

Proposed disposal of land and foul drainage 

easement’ to Edenstone Homes at Penlanlas Farm, 

Old Hereford Road, Abergavenny.

Cllr P Murphy Ben Thorpe 20/06/19

P
age 24



ICMD 10/07/19 PTU Structure John McConnachie

ICMD 10/07/19 Collections Review Rachael Rogers 27/03/19

Cabinet 03/07/19

Replacement LDP Issues, Vision and Objectives 

Rachel Lewis 11/06/19

Cabinet 03/07/19 Social Justice Strategy Annual Update Cath Fallon 08/05/19

Cabinet 03/07/19 Welsh Church Fund Working Group

The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2019/20, meeting 1 & 3 held on 11th 

April and 20th June 2019

Dave Jarrett 18/04/19

Cabinet 03/07/19 LDP Growth Options From ICMD Mark Hand 01/05/19

Cabinet 03/07/19
Guaranteed Interview Scheme for Service Leavers, 

Veterans and Spouses
Joe Skidmore 07/06/19

ICMD 26/06/19 Training/PTU Structure John McConnacie 14/05/19

ICMD 26/06/19 SWTRA agreement signature - May 19 Jane Pratt Roger Hoggins 04/06/19

ICMD 26/06/19
Household Waste Duty of Care Fixed Penalty 

Notices
Sara Jones Huw Owen 04/06/19

P
age 25



ICMD 26/06/19 LDP Growth Options Going to Cabinet 3 July Mark Hand 01/05/19

ICMD 12/06/19
 PROPOSED 30 MPH SPEED LIMIT STATION 

ROAD AND OLD TRAP ROAD, GILWERN

DEFERRED PENDING FURTHER WORK ON 

COSTINGS
Paul Keeble 02/05/19

ICMD 12/06/19 Interim arrangements - transfer of the GIS from SRS

to outline the interim arrangements for provision of the 

GIS function in collaboration with Newport City 

Council

Sian Hayward 16/05/19

ICMD 12/06/19 Non Domestic Rates application for hardship relief

To determine whether it is appropriate to give 

discretionary rate relief on the grounds of hardship to 

a ratepayer in Monmouth town

Ruth Donovan 23/05/19

ICMD 12/06/19
Structural Changes in Policy and Governance 

Section
Matt Gatehouse/P Jordan 02/05/19

ICMD 12/06/19 Volunteering Update DEFERRED Cath Fallon 08/05/19

ICMD 12/06/19 Eco-Flexi Statement of Intent
To scrutinise the Council's "Statement of Intent" 

rgarding access to Energy Company
Steve Griffiths 01/05/19

ICMD 12/06/19 Training/PTU Structure DEFERRED TO 26/6 John McConnacie/Bryan Jones 14/05/19

ICMD 12/06/19 Monmouthshire Local Toilet Strategy From Cabinet Planner Dave Jones 21/05/19

Cabinet 05/06/19 Welsh Church Fund Working Group

The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2019/20, meeting 2 held on 16th May 

2019

Dave Jarrett 18/04/19

P
age 26



Cabinet 05/06/19 Revenue and Capital Monitoring  Outturn 
To provide Members with information on the outturn 

position of the Authority for the financial year
Mark Howcroft 18/04/19

Cabinet 05/06/19 Local Toilet Strategy Dave Jones 06/03/19

Cabinet 05/06/19
Section 106 funding – Forensic Science Laboratory 

Site, Chepstow 
Mike Moran 20/02/19

Cabinet 05/06/19 LDP Issues, Objectives & Vision Mark Hand

ICMD 22/05/19 SWTRA Agreement - Singature & Seal Roger Hoggins 02/05/19

ICMD 22/05/19
APPEARANCE OF LOCAL AUTHORITIES IN 

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
Matt Phillips/ Paul Jordan 30/04/19

ICMD 22/05/19

(ENRaW) Funding: Gwent Green Grid Partnership

Matthew Lewis 24/04/19

ICMD 22/05/19
           PROPOSED PROHIBITION OF WAITING AT 

ANY TIME, NEWTOWN ROAD, PENPERLLENI.
Paul Keeble 18/04/19

ICMD 22/05/19

           PROPOSED PROHIBITION OF WAITING AT 

SPECIFIED TIMES ONLY, LAUNDRY PLACE, 

ABERGAVENNY 

Paul Keeble 18/04/19

Council 16/05/19 Chief Officer CYP Annual Report Will Mclean 26/03/19

P
age 27



Council 16/05/19 Proposed Off-Road Cycling Centre, Llanfoist Mike Moran 20/02/19

Council 16/05/19 Speed Management Roger Hoggins 29/01/19

ICMD 08/05/19

Delivering Excellence in Children’s Service: 

Establishment update in line with setting the 

structure for 2019/20.  

To establish a fit for purpose structure for Children’s 

Services for the forthcoming financial year of 

2019/2020 and beyond.

Jane Rodgers 17/04/19

ICMD 08/05/19 Museum Service Interim Reduction in hours Matt Lewis 11/04/19

Cabinet 01/05/19

Cabinet to agree to commence statutory 

consultation to open a new Welsh Medium Primary 

School in Monmouth.

Deferred to ? Debbie Morgan 05/03/19

Cabinet 01/05/19  Recruitment & Selection Policy  Sally Thomas 26/02/19

Cabinet 01/05/19 Play Sufficiency Audit and Action Plan 2019 Mike Moran 20/02/19

Cabinet 01/05/19
Proposed changes to the membership of the school 

budget finance forum

This paper is to propose changing the membership of 

the school budget forum to allow wider representation
Nikki Wellington 15/02/19

ICMD 24/04/19 ROWIP DRAFT PLAN Ruth Rourke 02/0/19

ICMD 24/04/19 Review of Collections Development Policy Rachael Rogers 27/03/19

P
age 28



Council 11/04/19
Monmouthshire Citizen Advice Bureau Annual 

Report

To provide members with an opportunity to discuss 

the work and ask questions of the Chief Executive of 

CAB Monmouthshire which provides advice to local 

people and its contribution to the council’s purpose of 

building sustainable and resilient communities.

Matt Gatehouse 05/10/18

Council 11/04/19 Mon Life Peter Davies

Council 11/04/19 Development Company Peter Davies

ICMD 10/04/19
Supplementary Planning Guidance on Affordable 

Housing commuted sums 
endorsement to consult for 6 weeks Mark Hand / Cllr Sara Jones 15/03/19

ICMD 10/04/19 Housing Options Staffing Report Ian Bakewell / Cllr Sara Jones 14/03/19

ICMD 10/04/19 Consolidated Traffic Order Roger Hoggins 29/01/19

Cabinet 03/04/19 catchment review / admissions policy Matthew Jones 19/03/19

Cabinet 03/04/19 Agency and Self Employed Workers Policy Sally Thomas 26/02/19

Cabinet 03/04/19 Section 106 Funding – Sudbrook Paper Mill Mike Moran 20/02/19

Cabinet 03/04/19 Welsh Church Fund Working Group

The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2018/19, meeting 9 held on the 7th 

March 2019.

Dave Jarrett 17/04/18

P
age 29



ICMD 27/03/19

BLAENAVON INDUSTRIAL LANDSCAPE WORLD 

HERITAGE SITE MANAGEMENT PLAN (2018 - 

2023)

To seek approval of the Blaenavon Industrial 

Landscape World Heritage Site Management Plan 

(2018-2023).

Matthew Lewis 08/03/19

ICMD 27/03/19
DRAFT INFILL DEVELOPMENT 

SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE 
MARK HAND 06/03/19

ICMD 27/03/19
DEFINITIVE MAP MODIFICATION ORDER, 

PRICES BRIDGE, WHITELYE, TRELLECH
Ruth Rourke 05/03/19

ICMD 27/03/19 Weekend Traffic Orders NO LONGER REQUIRED - RH Roger Hoggins 29/01/19

ICMD 27/03/19 Future Housing Management Register NO LONGER REQUIRED Mark Hard 29/01/19

ICMD 27/03/19 Youth Support Grant Additional Funding Cllr Richard John Hannah Jones 21/01/19

ICMD 13/03/19
Non Domestic Rates:High Street and Retail Rates 

Relief
Ruth Donovan 01/03/19

ICMD 13/03/19 Use of S106 funding in Wyesham Cllr Bryan Jones Mike Moran 20/02/19

ICMD 13/03/19
Proposed prohibition of waiting at any time Capel Y 

Ffin to Llanvihangel Crucorney Rd
Paul Keeble 19/02/19

ICMD 13/03/19 Restructure of Housing Options Scheme DEFERRED Ian Bakewell 04/02/19

P
age 30



ICMD 13/03/19 PSPO Consider Condition of all MCC car parks Andrew Mason 08/01/19

ICMD 13/03/19 Formula Change for Mounton House Nikki Wellington

Council 07/03/19 Road Safety Strategy Rogger Hoggins 29/01/19

Council 07/03/19 Final Budget Proposals Combined with Council Tax Resolution Report Peter Davies 11/09/18

Council 07/03/19 Treasury Management Strategey 2019/20 To accept the annual treasury Management Peter Davies 11/09/18

Council 07/03/19 Council Tax Resolution 2019/20 To set budget and Council tax for 2019/20 Ruth Donovan 11/09/18

Cabinet 06/03/19 Future Options for Mounton House School Will Mclean 27/09/18

Cabinet 06/03/19
2019/20 Education and Welsh Church Trust Funds 

Investment and Fund Strategies

The purpose of this report is to present to Cabinet for 

approval the 2019/20 Investment and Fund Strategy 

for Trust Funds for which the Authority acts as sole or 

custodian trustee for adoption and to approve the  

2018/19 grant allocation to Local Authority 

beneficiaries of the Welsh Church Fund.

Dave Jarrett 17/04/18

Cabinet 06/03/19

Report to Federate the Governing Bodies of 

Llanfoist Fawr and Llanvihangel Crucorney Primary 

Schools.

Cath Saunders

Cabinet 06/03/19
Investment Case to Deliver next phase of 

procurement strategy 
Peter Davies

P
age 31



ICMD 27/02/19
ESTABLISHMENT OF URBAN AND PHYSICAL 

REGENERATION TEAM 
Cath Fallon 29/01/19

Council 21/02/19

Addressing our lack of a five year housing land 

supply: a review of Monmouthshire’s approach to 

unallocated housing sites

Mark Hand 29/01/19

Council 21/02/19
REGENERATION OF SEVERNSIDE & THE 

FUTURE ROLE OF CALDICOT TOWN TEAM.
Cath Fallon 29/01/19

Council 21/02/19 Capitalisation of Revenue Costs Mark Howcroft 29/01/19

Cabinet - Special 20/02/19 Final Revenue and Capital Budget Proposals Peter Davies 20/09/18

ICMD 13/02/19 Lido facility in Bailey Park Deb Hill Howells 21/01/19

ICMD 13/02/19
Prohibition of waiting at anytime, Lansdown Road, 

Abergavenny
Paul Keeble 15/01/19

Cabinet 06/02/19 Local Housing Market Assessment Mark Hand 29/01/19

P
age 32



Cabinet 06/02/19 Welsh Church Fund Working Group

The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2018/19, meeting 8 held on the 17th 

January 2019.

Dave Jarrett 17/04/18

ICMD 30/01/19 Data Protection & GDPR Officer for Schools Sian Hawyard

ICMD 30/01/19
Social Care & Health Senior Leadership Review 

Follow up
Tyrone Stokes

Council 17/01/19 Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2018/19 Ruth Donovan 11/09/18

ICMD 16/01/19
IN-HOUSE SENIOR CARE & SUPPORT WORKER 

RE-GRADING
Colin Richings 31/12/18

ICMD 16/01/19 DOMESTIC ASSISTANT POST RE-GRADE Sian Gardner 31/12/18

ICMD 16/01/19

Monmouthshire LDP Sustainability Appraisal 

Scoping Report and Habitats Regulations Appraisal 

Initial Screening

Mark Hand/Rachel Lewis 21/12/18

P
age 33



ICMD 16/01/19

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (WALES) ACT 1994 

THE LOCAL AUTHORITIES (PRECEPTS) (WALES) 

REGULATIONS 1995
Jonathan S Davies 18/12/18

Cabinet 09/01/19
Final Draft Budget Proposals or recommendation to 

Council. 
Joy Robson 17/04/18

Cabinet 09/01/19 Welsh Church Fund Working Group

The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2018/19, meeting 7 held on the 13th 

December 2018.

Dave Jarrett 17/04/18

Cabinet 09/01/19 Budget Monitoring report - month 7 (period 2)

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with 

information on the forecast outturn position of the 

Authority at end of month reporting for 2018/19 

financial year.

Joy Robson/Mark Howcroft 17/04/18

Cabinet 08/01/19
Conclusion of the statutory processes concerning 

Mounton House Special Schoo
Matthew Jones 09/10/19

Cabinet 19/12/18 Gwent Homelesness Strategy Moved to Council 13 December Steve Griffiths 05/11/18

Cabinet 19/12/18 Draft Revenue Capital Budget Proposals

To outline the proposed capital budget for 2019/20 

and indicative capital budgets for the 3 years 2020/21 

to 2022/23

Joy Robson/Peter Davies 19/09/18

P
age 34



Council 13/12/18 Gwent Homelessness Strategy Steve Griffiths 13/11/18

Council 13/12/18 Capital Budget Report on 3rd Lane on Wye Bridge Defer to December Paul Keeble 20/09/18

Council 13/12/18 Final approval of MonLife and MonLife Plus Tracey Thomas 09/08/18

ICMD 12/12/18

PROHIBITION OF WAITING AT ANY TIME 

(CHAPEL ROAD, STANHOPE STREET, CANTREF 

ROAD, AVENUE ROAD, HAROLD ROAD) 

ABERGAVENNY

Paul Keeble 21/11/18

ICMD 12/12/18
Local Government (Wales) Act 1994 The Local 

Authorities (Precepts)9wlaes) Regulations 1995
Jonathan S Davies 20/11/18

Cabinet 05/12/18 Implementation of NJC revised payspine April 2019 09/10/18

Cabinet 05/12/18 LA and Schools Partnership Agreement Cath Saunders 26/09/18

Cabinet 05/12/18 Corporate Plan: Progress Report Matthew Gatehouse 10/07/18

Cabinet 05/12/18
Reorganisation of ALN and Inclusion Services 

update
Cabinet consider objections received on the Reorganisation of ALN & Inclusion Services and decide whether to implement the proposals.Debbie Morgan 25/05/18

P
age 35



Cabinet 05/12/18 Welsh Church Fund Working Group

The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2018/19, meeting 6 held on the 25th 

October 2018.

Dave Jarrett 17/04/18

Cabinet 05/12/18 Council Tax Base 2019/20 and associated matters

To agree the Council Tax Base figure for submission 

to the Welsh Government, together with the collection 

rate to be applied for 2019/20 and to make other 

necessary related statutory decisions

Sue Deacy/Ruth Donovan 17/04/18

Cabinet 05/12/18 Reviews of Fees and Charges

To reciew all fees and charges made for services 

across the Council and identify proposals for 

increasing them in 2019/20

Mark Howcroft 17/04/18

ICMD 28/11/18 Panel Fees for Foster Carers Jane Rodgers 17/10/18

ICMD 14/11/18 Review of Mardy Local Lettings Policy Ian Bakewell 24/10/18

ICMD 14/11/18 ·         Rural Allocations Policy Shirley Wiggam 23/10/18

ICMD 14/11/18 ·         Social Housing Grant Programme Shirley Wiggam 23/10/18

ICMD 14/11/18
Family Support within ‘Statutory’ Children’s Services - 

Re-design of the Contact Service
Jane Rodgers 17/10/18

ICMD 14/11/18 Proposal to extend supporting people contdracts in 

2019/20

Chris Robinson

10/09/18

Cabinet 07/11/18 Targeted Regeneration Investment Programme, The 

Cross, Caldicot 

Cath Fallon

12/10/18

P
age 36



Cabinet 07/11/18 21st Century Schools - Band B project Team Will Mclean 12/10/18

Cabinet 07/11/18 Cadetship Programme Tracey Harry 20/09/18

Cabinet 07/11/18 Structure Report Roger Hoggins 20/09/18

Cabinet 07/11/18
Project 5: Development of a Therapeutic Foster 

Care Service for Complex Young People
Jane Rodgers 30/08/18

Cabinet 07/11/18 MTFP and Budget Process for 2019/20 to 2022/23 To outline the context and process within which the 

MTFP over the next 4 years and the budget for 

2019/20 will be developed.

Joy Robson 17/04/18

Council 25/10/18
Statement of Gambling Policy and proposals for 

Casinos
Linda O'Gorman 10/09/18

Council 25/10/18 County Hall Accommodation
Seeking approval to undertake borrowing to fund the 

refurbishment works to County Hall
Deb Hill-Howells 17/07/18

Council 25/10/18 Proposal to create a development company

Deb Hill-Howells

ICMD 24/10/18 Additional Service Offer at Usk Hub To seek approval for the development of a business 

case to site a Post Office within Usk Hub following the 

announcement of the planned closure of the current 

facility on Bridge Street

Matt Gatehouse / Richard 

Drinkwater

04/10/18

ICMD 10/10/18 Register of Priority Services

Ian Hardman

18/09/18

P
age 37



ICMD 10/10/18 Joint Heritage Services with Torfaen Mark Hand 05/09/18

ICMD 10/10/18 Extension of Lease for Gilwern Library

To seek approval to extend the council’s lease of 

space within Gilwern Community Centre for the 

continued provision of a library service beyond the 

end of the current agreement which expires in March 

2019

Matthew Gatehouse 03/08/18

Cabinet 03/10/18 Welsh Church Funding Working Group

The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

applications 2018/19, Meeting 5 held on the 20th 

September 2018.

Dave Jarrett 17/04/18 12/09/18

ICMD 26/09/18 Joint Heritage Services with Torfaen DEFERRED TO 10 OCTOBER Mark Hand 05/09/18

ICMD 26/09/18
Amendments to cemeteries management 

practicesto withdraw burial plot reservations.
Deb Hill-Howells 17/07/18

Council 20/09/18 Abergavenny Hub
Final business case to proceed with the creation of a 

Hub at Abergavenny Town Hall
Deb Hill Howells 17/07/18

Council 20/09/18 A40 Wyebridge Highway Improvement Scheme Paul Keeble 12/07/18

Council 20/09/18
Well-being Objectives and Statement Annual Report 

2017/18

For Council to approve the Annual Report 2107/18 on 

MCCs wellbeing objectives and statement
Richard Jones 30/05/18

Council 20/09/18 Fairtrade Hazel Clatworthy 24/05/18

Council 20/09/18 MCC Audited Accounts 2017/18 (formal approval
To present the audited Statement of Accounts for 

2017/18 for approval by Council
Joy Robson/Mark Howcroft

P
age 38



Council 20/09/18 ISA 260 report - MCC Accounts - attachment above
To provide external audits repor on the Statement of 

Accounts 2017/18
WAO

Council 20/09/18 J Block Proposals

Deb Hill-Howells

ICMD 12/09/18 Colleague Volunteering Pilot
To seek approval to establish a Colleague 

Volunteering Pilot for 30 staff across directorates.
Owen Wilce

Cabinet 05/09/18 NEET Hannah Jones 09/08/18

Cabinet 05/09/18 Management of obstructions in the public highway
For Cabinet  to approve recommendations made by 

Strong Communities Select on 30th July
Roger Hoggins 09/08/18

Cabinet 05/09/18
ICM Phase 2 Implementation of Family Support 

Services - post statutory threshold
Jane Rodgers 01/08/18

Cabinet 05/09/18
Targeted Regeneration Investment - South 

Monmouthshire
Cath Fallon 13/07/18

Cabinet 05/09/18 Childcare Offer Rebecca Davis 12/06/18

Cabinet 05/09/18 Welsh Church Fund Working Group

The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2018/19, meeting 4 held on the 26th July 

2018

Dave Jarrett 17/04/18

Cabinet 05/09/18
Recommendations on the review of ALN & Inclusion 

Services
Cabinet to receive recommendations based on the consultation responses received on the review of ALN and Inclusion Services and agree to publish statutory noticesDebbie Morgan 25/05/01

P
age 39



Cabinet 05/09/18 Regional Safeguarding Board Annual Report Deferred Claire Marchant

Cabinet 05/09/18 S106 Procedure Note and S106 Guidance Note DEFERRED from May Mark Hand

ICMD 22/08/18 Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 Andrew Mason 03/08/18

ICMD 08/08/18
Children’s Services – Supporting First Years in 

Practice 
Jane Rodgers 19/07/18

ICMD 08/08/18 Safeguarding Business Support Update Diane Corrister 19/07/18

ICMD 08/08/18
Financial Systems support team - change of role 

and job description
Ruth Donovan 03/07/18

Council 26/07/18 Shadow Board recruitment for the ADM Cath Fallon 15/06/18

Council 26/07/18
Stock Transfer – Promises Kept/Missed & Added 

Value
PRESENTATION ONLY Ian Bakewell 08/06/18

Council 26/07/18 Audit Committee Annual Report Wendy Barnard 24/05/18

Council 26/07/18
Strategic Development Plan (SDP) Responsibiloie 

Authority Report 
DEFERRED Mark Hand 09/05/18

P
age 40



Council 26/07/18 Chief Officer Annual Report Claire Marchant

Council 26/07/18 Safeguarding Evaluative Report Claire Marchant

ICMD 25/07/18
Private Sector Housing Loan Schemes - Change of 

Terms.
Steve Griffiths 21/06/18

Cabinet 25/07/18 Youth Enterprise 20/06/18

Cabinet 25/07/18 Borough Theatre 20/06/18

Cabinet 25/07/18 Events 20/06/18

Cabinet 25/07/18 Month 2 Budget Report 20/06/18

ICMD 25/07/18 Housing Renewal Policy Ian Bakewell 17/05/18 13/06/18

ICMD 25/07/18 B&B Policy Ian Bakewell 17/05/18

ICMD 25/07/18
‘Disposal of land adjacent to A40 at Monmouth for 

highway improvements’
DEFERRED from June Gareth King/Cllr P Murphy 03/05/18

P
age 41



Cabinet 25/07/18 Resource Strategy
To comprise Commercial; Procurement; People; 

Digital; Financial strategies                              
Peter Davies 23/04/18

Cabinet 25/07/18 Budget Monitoring report - Month 2 (period 1)

The purpose of this report is to provide Members with  

information on the forecast outturn position of the 

Authority at end of month reporting for 2018/19 

financial year.

Joy Robson/Mark Howcroft 17/04/18

Cabinet 25/07/18 The delivery of budget savings for 2018/19. 

To provide Cabinet with a level of comfort and 

reassurance around the delivery of Budget savings for 

2108/19

Peter Davies 15/04/18

ICMD 25/07/18 Care Homes Fees – Fair Rate for Care Exercise Cllr P Jones Nicola Venus- Balgobin

ICMD 11/07/18

FLOOD and Water Management Act 2010 - 

Schedule 3 
IMPLEMENTATION of the Sustainable Drainage Systems 

(SuDS) Approving Body (SAB)

Paul Keeble 22/06/18

ICMD 11/07/18 RECRUITMENT OF BSSG ADMIN OFFICER Christian Schmidt 22/06/18

ICMD 11/07/18 Workforce Update Report - Children's Services DEFERRED Claire Robins 07/06/18

Cabinet 04/07/18 Disposal of Land between Llanishen and Trellech

To declare approx 36 acres of land between 

Llanishen and Trellech surplus to requirements and to 

seek consent for its disposal

Gareth King 15/06/18

Cabinet 04/07/18 Care Leavers Report Ruth Donovan 07/06/18

Cabinet 04/07/18 Restructure of attractions services in TLCY Tracey Thomas 07/06/18

P
age 42



Cabinet 04/07/18 Review of ALN & Inclusion Services Cabinet to consider the results of the statutory consultation on the review and agree the revised timelineDebbie Morgan 25/05/18

Cabinet 04/07/18 School Meal Debt Management Roger Hoggins 17/05/18

Cabinet 04/07/18 Draft NEET Reduction Strategy Hannah Jones 08/05/18

Cabinet 04/07/18
Inspire Programmes (Inspire2Achieve and 

Inspire2Work) 
DEFERRED Hannah Jones 08/05/18

Cabinet 04/07/18 Welsh Church Fund Working Group

The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2018/19, meeting 3 held on the 21st 

June 2018.

Dave Jarrett 17/04/2018 07/03/18

Cabinet 04/07/18 Crick Road Business Case ITEM DEFERRED Colin Richings

Cabinet 04/07/18 The Knoll, Section 106 funding, Abergavenny DEFERRED from June Mike Moran

Cabinet 04/07/18 Chippenham Mead Play Area DEFERRED from 6/6/18 Mike Moran

ICMD 27/06/18
REALLOCATION OF SECTION 106 FUNDING, 

MONMOUTH
Mike Moran 08/06/18

Report deleted from 

Planner 7/6/18

ICMD 27/06/18

Definitive Map Modification Order Section 53  (C) (i) 

Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 Restricted Byway 

(53-16) Great Panta Devauden
Paul Keeble/Cllr B Jones 31/05/18

P
age 43



ICMD 27/06/18 Planning advice charges for LDP candidate sites. Mark Hand 24/05/18

ICMD 27/06/18
Early help Duty and Assessment – Hierarchy Update 

– Service Manager 
Claire Robins 24/05/18

Council 21/06/18 Corporate Parenting Strategy Claire Marchant 07/06/18

Council 21/06/18 Plastic Free County Hazel Clatworthy 24/05/18

Council 21/06/18 Joint Scrutiny of the City Deal Hazel Ilett 30/04/18

ICMD 13/06/18 Housing Restructure Ian Bakewell 17/05/18

ICMD 13/06/18 Re-fit Cymru programme

To seek approval to enter into a contract with Local 

Partnerships to utilise their framework to access 

energy efficient technologies.

Deb Hill Howells/Phil Murphy 10/05/18
15/02/2018 Report 

deleted from planner

ICMD 13/06/18 Supporting People contract procurement exemptions Chris Robinson 10/04/18

ICMD 13/06/18 Children with Disability - Hierachy Update Claire Robins 05/03/18

Cabinet 06/06/18 Twr Mihangel Section 106 Funding Mike Moran 18/05/18

P
age 44



Cabinet 06/06/18 Section 106 Off-Site Play Contributions Mike Moran 18/05/18

Cabinet 06/06/18 ADM Update Tracey Thomas 18/05/18

Cabinet 06/06/18
Proposed 25 year lease of Former Park Primary , 

Abergavenny, to Abergavenny Community Trust
Nicola Howells 15/05/18 09/03/18

Cabinet 06/06/18 Council Response to the LGR Green Paper Matt Gatehouse 14/05/18

Cabinet 06/06/18
Revenue and Capital Monitoring 2017/18 Outturn 

Forecast Statement

To provide Members with information on the outturn 

position of the Authority for the 2017/18 year.
Mark Howcroft 17/04/18

Cabinet 06/06/18 Welsh Church Fund Working Group

The purpose of this combined report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2018/19, meeting 1 held on 19th April 

and meeting 2 held on 10th May 2018

Dave Jarrett 17/04/18 07/03/18

Cabinet 06/06/18 Corporate Parenting Strategy Jane Rodgers 22/03/18

Cabinet 06/06/18 Welsh Language Monitoring Report Moved to Strong Communities Select Alan Burkitt

Cabinet 06/06/18 Kerbcraft Update DEFERRED from May

ICMD 23/05/18 Creation of an Asset Officer Post, Estates Deb Hill Howells/Cllr P Murphy 03/05/18 07/03/18

P
age 45



ICMD 23/05/18 Letting of Penarth Farm, Llanishen Gareth King/Cllr P Murphy 03/05/18

ICMD 23/05/18 High Street Rate Relief Scheme for 2018/19 
To adopt the scheme of 2018/19 in accordance with 

Welsh Government Guidance
Ruth Donovan 26/04/18

ICMD 23/05/18
Proposed 30mph Speed Limit, Llandevenny Road, 

Llandevenny, Mill
Paul Keeble/Cllr B Jones 25/04/18

ICMD 23/05/18
Transfer to Torfaen - Assessment of free school 

meal entitlement for MCC
Nikki Wellington/Cllr Murphy 10/04/18

Council 10/05/18 Strategic Asset Management Plan Peter Davies 23/04/18

Council 10/05/18 To agree update on the Safeguarding Policy Cath Sheen 16/04/18

Council 10/05/18 Local Development Plan Delivery Agreement Mark Hand 11/04/18

Council 10/05/18 Boundary Review John Pearson

ICMD 09/05/18
Rural Programmes Team – ICT and Finance 

Apprentice Post 
Michael Powell 23/04/18

ICMD 09/05/18 GDPR Data Protection Policy Rachel Trusler 20/04/18

P
age 46



ICMD 09/05/18 Trellech Speed Limits Paul Keeble 18/04/18

ICMD 09/05/18 Civil Parking Enforcements Moved from Cabinet 11/04/18 Paul Keeble 13/04/18

ICMD 09/05/18

PROHIBITION OF WAITING AT ANY TIME 

(CHAPEL ROAD, STANHOPE STREET, CANTREF 

ROAD, AVENUE ROAD, HAROLD ROAD) 

ABERGAVENNY

Paul Keeble/Cllr B Jones 13/04/18

ICMD 09/05/18
Creation of fixed term Senior Planning Policy Officer 

Post for 3.5 years
Mark Hand/Cllr Greenland 12/04/18

ICMD 09/05/18

Amendment to existing fixed term Senior Landscape 

and Urban Design Officer post to make it a 

permanent post;

Mark Hand/Cllr Greenland 12/04/18

ICMD 09/05/18
Creation of fixed term Apprentice Planner post 

(exact job title tbc)
Mark Hand/Cllr Greenland 12/04/18

ICMD 09/05/18
Re-evaluation of Post of Lead - Community 

Improvement Supervisor
Nigel Leaworthy 10/04/18 09/03/18

ICMD 09/05/18 Supporting People contract procurement exemptions DEFERRED TO 13 JUNE Chris Robinson 15/02/18

ICMD 09/05/18

Adoption of highway management plan including 

appointment of Highway Asset  inspector and 

changes to Asset Planning Officer posts

Paul Keeble

Cabinet 02/05/18 Adoption of Road Safety Strategy Paul Keeble

P
age 47



Cabinet 02/05/18 Social Justice Srtategy Cath Fallon 12/03/18

Council 19/04/18 Bryn Y Cwm Change of name Matt Gatehouse 21/03/18

Council 19/04/18 Council Diary 2018/19 John Pearson 12/03/18

Council 19/04/18 Sale of old County Hall Site Roger Hoggins 16/02/18

Council 19/04/18 Chief Officer Report CYP Will Mclean 25/01/18

ICMD 18/04/18 Communities for Work Hannah Jones 22/03/18

ICMD 18/04/18 Disposal of easement at Wonastow Road Ben Winstanley 14/03/18

Cabinet 11/04/18 Tree Policy Roger Hoggins 19/02/18

Cabinet 11/04/18 VAWDASV Joe Skidmore 08/02/18

Cabinet 11/04/18 Disposal of County Hall Roger Hoggins

P
age 48



Cabinet 11/04/18 Welsh Church Fund Working Group

The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2017/18, meeting 6 held on the 22nd 

February 2018

Dave Jarrett

ICMD 28/03/18 Property Maintenance Framework Agreement Phil Kenney/P Murphy 06/03/18

ICMD 28/03/18
Children's Services Business Support Team - 

Hierachy Update
Claire Robins 05/03/18

ICMD 28/03/18 Social Care & Health - Business Support Post Claire Robins 05/03/18

ICMD 28/03/18
Staffing Restructure of SCH Workforce Development 

Team
Sian Sexton 05/03/18

ICMD 28/03/18 Operational Changes to Trading Standards Gareth Walters/Sara Jones 27/02/18

ICMD 28/03/18

Section 106 Major Maintenance Capital for the 

repairs to the footbridge over the Gavenny at 

Penyval,

Nigel Leaworthy

Council 19/03/18 City Deal Business Plan Paul Matthews

Council 19/03/18 LDP Mark Hand

ICMD 14/03/18 Future of Melin Private Leasing Scheme Ian Bakewell 15/02/18

P
age 49



ICMD 14/03/18 2nd Phase Families Support Review Claire Marchant

ICMD 14/03/18 Award Garden Waste Contract Carl Touhig

ICMD 14/03/18 S106 Transport Projects Richard Cope

Cabinet 07/03/18
2018/19 Education and Welsh  Church Trust Funds 

Investment and Fund strategies

To present to Cabinet for approval the 2018/19 

Investment Fund Strategy for Trust Funds for which 

the authority acts as sole or custodian trustee for 

adoption and to approve the 2017/18 grant allocation 

to LA beneficiaries of the Welsh Church Fund

Dave Jarrett

Cabinet 07/03/18 Corporate Parenting Strategy Claire Marchant

Cabinet 07/03/18 EAS Business Plan Will Mclean

Cabinet 07/03/18
Proposed changes to the schools mfunding 

formulafor the funding of building maintenance costs

To seek approval to reduce the funding of building 

maintenance costs for our new schools
Nikki Wellington

Cabinet 07/03/18
Replacement document management system for 

revenues
Ruth Donovan

Cabinet 07/03/18
Review of Additional Learning Needs and inclusion 

services

To seek cabinet approval to commence the statutory 

consultation process associated with proposed 

changes to ALN and Inclusion Services

Matthew Jones

Cabinet 07/03/18 Turning the World Upside Down DEFERRED  Claire Marchant

P
age 50



Cabinet 07/03/18 Whole Authority Risk Assessment Richard Jones

Council 01/03/18 Treasury Strategy Peter Davies 08/02/18

Council 01/03/18 Approval of public service board well-being plan Matt Gatehouse

Council 01/03/18 Area Plan - Population Needs Assessment Claire Marchant

Council 01/03/18 Council Tax Resolution 2018/19 Ruth Donovan

Council 01/03/18 Pooled fund for care homes Claire Marchant

Council 01/03/18 Social Justice Policy ITEM DEFERRED Cath Fallon

Cabinet 28/02/18 Borough Theatre Tracey Thomas 19/02/18

ICMD 28/02/18
Recruitment for Maternity Cover: Development 

Management Team
Phil Thomas 08/02/18

ICMD 28/02/18 Restructure of Mental health Social Work Staffing John Woods 08/02/18

P
age 51



ICMD 28/02/18 Staffing Restructure of Adult Disability Service John Woods 08/02/18

Cabinet 28/02/18 Final Budget Proposals Peter Davies

ICMD 28/02/18
Charges in relation to the delivery of the auths 

private water supply responsibilties
Huw Owen

ICMD 28/02/18 Fixed Penalty Notice charges for fly tipping offences Huw Owen/Sara Jones

ICMD 28/02/18 Gypsy and Traveller Pitch allocation policy report Steve Griffiths

ICMD 28/02/18 Re-designation of Shared Housing Ian Bakewell/Greenland

ICMD 28/02/18 Removal of under 18 burial charges Deb Hill Howells

Council 21/02/18 Widening of Investment definition Mark Howcroft 29/01/19

Council 15/02/18 Active Travel Plan and Civil Parking Enforcement Roger Hoggins

Council 15/02/18 Corporate Plan Kellie Beirne

P
age 52



Council 15/02/18 Pay Policy Sally Thomas

ICMD 14/02/18 All Wales Play opportunities grant Matthew Lewis/Cllr Greenland

ICMD 14/02/18
Development Management Enhanced Services 

proposals
Phil Thomas

ICMD 14/02/18 Loan to Foster Carers Jane Rodgers

ICMD 14/02/18 Personal Transport Budgets Roger Hoggins

ICMD 14/02/18 Public Health Wales Act - Intimate Piercing David Jones

ICMD 14/02/18
Residents only parking permit scheme Usk View, 

Merthyr Road, Abergavenny
Paul Keeble 03/01/18

ICMD 14/02/18 Usk in Bloom Cath Fallon

ICMD 08/02/18 Fixed Penalty Notice charges for fly tipping offences Huw Owen

ICMD 31/01/18 Seasonal Garden Waste Collections Carl Touhig

P
age 53



ICMD 31/01/18 Staffing changes in Policy and Governance Matt Gatehouse

Cabinet 29/01/18 ADM Kellie Beirne

Cabinet 29/01/18 Corporate Plan Kellie Beirne

Council 18/01/18 Council Tax Reduction Scheme 2018/19 Ruth Donovan

Council 18/01/18
Response to Older Adults Mental Health 

Consultation
Claire Marchant 03/01/18

ICMD 17/01/18
Local Government (Wales) Act 1994 The Local 

Authorities (Precepts)9wlaes) Regulations 1995
Joy Robson/Mark Howcroft

ICMD 17/01/18
Supporting People Programme Grant Spendplan 

2018-19
Chris Robinson

ICMD 17/01/18 Trainee Accountant Regrade Tyrone Stokes

Cabinet 10/01/18 Budget Monitoring Report

The purpose of this report is to provide members with 

information on the forecast outturn position of the 

authority at end of month reporting for 2016/17 

financial year

Joy Robson/Mark Howcroft

Cabinet 10/01/18
Chepstow Cluster - proposed distribution of Section 

106 monies
To agree the distribution of section 106 to the cluster Nikki Wellington

P
age 54



Cabinet 10/01/18
Re-Use Shop at llanfoist Household Recycling 

Centre
Roger Hoggins

Cabinet 10/01/18 Management of obstructions in the public highway Roger Hoggins

Cabinet 10/01/18 Welsh Church Fund Working Group

The purpose of this report is to make 

recommendations to Cabinet on the Schedule of 

Applications 2017/18, meeting 5 held on the 14th 

December 2017

Dave Jarrett

5G

P
age 55



Cabinet Play Efficency 29/01/19

Museums (need workshop first) Frances Williams 29/01/19

LDP Mark Hand 29/01/19

Council Growth Option Mark Hand 29/01/19

Council Future Econ 29/01/19

P
age 56



 

 

 

Monmouthshire Select Committee Minutes 
 

 

Meeting of Children and Young People Select Committee held at Remote Meeting on Tuesday, 
13th October, 2020 at 10.00 am 

Councillors Present Officers in Attendance 

County Councillor T.Thomas (Chairman) 
County Councillor  L.Brown, (Vice Chairman) 
 
County Councillors: L.Brown, M.Groucutt, 
M.Lane, M. Powell and J.Watkins 
 
 

Robert McGowan, Policy and Scrutiny Officer 
Will McLean, Chief Officer for Children and Young 
People 
Matthew Gatehouse, Head of Policy and 
Governance 
Sharon Randall-Smith, Head of Achievement and 
Attainment 
Jane Rodgers, Head of Children's Services 
Lucie Doyle, Educational Psychologist 
Rebecca Stanton, Family Support Services Manager 
Morwenna Wagstaff, Area Educational Psychologist 

  
APOLOGIES: County Councillor L.Jones and D. Jones and Hazel Ilett. 
 

 
 

1. To note the appointment of County Councillor T. Thomas as Chair  
 

Councillor Tudor Thomas was confirmed as chair of the committee. 
 

2. Appointment of Vice Chair  
 

Councillor Jo Watkins proposed Councillor Louise Brown. Seconded by Councillor Maureen 
Powell and accepted by Councillor Brown. 

 
3. Declarations of Interest  

 
There were no declarations of interest. 

 
4. Public Open Forum  

 
No members of the public were present. 

 
5. Social Services Support for Vulnerable Children  

 
Officers Jane Rodgers and Rebecca Stanton delivered the presentation and answered the 

members’ questions, with additional responses from Will Mclean. 

 

Challenge: 

During lockdown, one would have expected an impact from schools not making referrals to your 

team? Where did the referrals come from at this time? 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 57

Agenda Item 8



 

 

The referral rate did not drop significantly during lockdown. Many referrals were from the Police, 

usually concerning domestic abuse. There were also self-referrals from parents struggling with 

the issues that were affecting their family during this period. Early help provision didn’t stop, nor 

did school-based counselling; so, although we weren’t getting referrals directly into Children’s 

Services, we had that open communication with all the early help and support services. 

Therefore, when problems did emerge, we were able to have the referrals. Issues within families 

come to light even though the schools might be closed – school is a big referrer, but so are 

Health and Police. When schools did come back we saw a steady increase, but Police remained 

the largest referrer. 

 

Is there evidence of an increase in domestic violence during lockdown? 

 

Unfortunately, we don’t get to all domestic abuse. The more we can create conditions whereby 

children and young people can share what’s happening at home through services provided by 

the family support team, the more we can try to tackle those issues early. As mentioned already, 

the level of police referrals has gone up – the majority of these concern domestic abuse. 

 

Regarding supervised parental meetings, if two families meet will there be a risk of virus 

transmission? But if we return to virtual meetings, will that affect the children’s resilience? 

 

We have been clear about not switching digital off completely – we have continued to offer both 

approaches. Part of the rationale for that was that if we go back into a full lockdown, children 

won’t be wrong-footed; we will simply increase the digital element. Doubtless, however, it will 

have an impact on children who want to see their parents that they don’t live with. Our contact 

centres and family time centres have been risk-assessed in detail, and the management that 

goes on with how families play with toys, the cleaning regime, etc., is all in place. Therefore, 

where we can still have face-to-face contact, the necessary steps have been put in correctly.  

 

How many of your staff were vulnerable and needed to isolate, and what was the pressure of 

absence rates? As an authority, can we support that? 

 

The social and emotional pressures on staff have been considerable. We continue to do 

whatever we can to support their resilience. Going into this phase is very daunting. Our absence 

rates over this period have not been to the extent where there is a real impact on the service; in 

fact, they have been remarkably good. Some individuals needed to shield, or were in 

households with someone shielding – we have worked carefully with them, and risk-assessed 

them to see what they can do. Many of those people were able to continue to work from home. 

We monitored the data in this area very closely in case we reached critical levels of staff 

shortages. 

 

What are your overall reflections on the implications of a potential second national lockdown? 

 

It is very difficult to say. We are more prepared for lockdown now than the first time. We have 

done a lot of work to make ourselves operational, and understand some of the challenges 

Page 58



 

 

better, and the ways in which we can alleviate them. We would certainly be worried about the 

impact on families, and are especially so about the long-term emotional welfare of the children 

and young people. 

 

Do you hope to keep the partnership with food banks working? 

 

Yes, this is very high on our agenda. We are speaking with colleagues who were running the 

food banks and doing that community work about how we can continue that work. We are also 

looking at how to bring in third sector, to make more of a wider community approach. We are 

also doing a survey through our early help panel, to ensure our intentions were received in the 

same way by the families, and to iron out any kinks. We had to be careful in this work with 

consent, and being transparent to families about sharing information between the teams.  

 

Do we have an idea of the causes for the referral rates having gone up? Particular pressures? 

 

There has been an escalation of existing problems and family dynamics due to the pressures of 

Covid. Finance has been one of the issues. Another big feature for children and young people 

has been anxiety around the pandemic, and the lack of an ending to it, which has brought up 

feelings of grief and loss: children have lost their year in school, activities with friends and, of 

course, there have been deaths in the family. We’ve worked hard on how to accept and manage 

grief and loss in a family setting. We aim to do the annual Remembering event on grief and loss 

virtually this year. We are also monitoring closely online exploitation, both criminal and sexual, 

substance and alcohol misuse, and parental mental health. 

 

What support are children with Additional Learning Needs receiving, now that there is no 

specialist school for them (with Mounton House having closed)? 

 

Yes, these were some of our more vulnerable children during this period. Not all of them could 

attend their schools, certainly during lockdown. Our role is to provide respite and support to 

children with disabilities, which we did through our Action For Children disability support service: 

we spent a number of hours each day with some of our most vulnerable children during this 

period, to provide respite for the family, and try to keep them in some sort of routine. We had 

our day respite service, where a child could go during the day, and parents continued to utilise 

direct payments during the period. So, although we can’t ever replace what a child would get 

from a school, we can provide additional support where it is needed. 

There were huge amounts of positive work between CYP and Social Services colleagues 

throughout lockdown, to ensure we were aware of all of the children who might need support, 

and ensure that vulnerable children could access support and learning. It is important to 

remember that Mounton House was open throughout that period, so it was providing support 

and education to the children during lockdown. There are a number of children whom we 

support, often in conjunction with Social Services, who have to go to schools out of county: in 

some cases, they were able to continue attending school, but if not, we worked closely with the 

schools to ensure they continued their engagement with the children. Our expectation of out of 

county schools is no different from our expectations of those in county. 

Page 59



 

 

 

Chair’s Summary: 

The members expressed their gratitude for the work performed by the officers and their 
colleagues. We have been reassured that Child Services responded quickly, in a very difficult 
situation. The schools responded very well too. We have had a comprehensive report as to how 
Child Services has operated during this time, both virtually and – increasingly – in person. We 
are grateful for the questions that have been answered about violence in the home, which is a 
major concern of this committee. It is very good to hear that the service has continued to pick up 
children and families that are at risk, and put in the necessary support. We are glad to hear of 
the strategies for supporting staff, too. We were reassured about referrals continuing, and staff 
absences being small. We also heard about the continuing work with external organisations 

 
6. School-based Support for emotional Well-being   

 
Educational Psychologists Morwenna Wagstaff and Lucie Doyle delivered the presentation and 

answered the members’ questions, with additional responses from Will Mclean and Sharon 

Randall-Smith. 

 

Challenge: 

Is the service Gwent-based or Monmouthshire-based? 

 

We are Monmouthshire Educational Psychology Service, although we work increasingly at a 

network level with our regional colleagues. 

 

ALN covers different conditions, requiring different approaches. How are teachers trained in 

these different areas? 

 

Yes, we encompass all of the ALN needs. Alongside the work described in the presentation, 

there are many other strands to the work that we are involved with, in regards to the ALN 

strategy. In particular, our focus on children that have ALNs, social communication, autism, 

challenging behaviour, etc. As an EPS we offer layers of work: if it’s a complex pupil, we would 

engage around that child individually, with other professionals, staff and the parents. We then 

might work at a school level, identifying what each school needs – if a school would benefit from 

whole school training in a particular area, for example. We also think on a systemic level about 

what we can offer in that area across the authority. 

 

As we don’t have a designated special needs school in Monmouthshire, some children will go to 

school outside the county. How do you ensure that the private school children benefit from the 

same training and support as those in state schools? 

 

We are in the process of exploring how to deliver training. While we no longer have a specialist 

school, we do have four special needs resource bases. We (Drs. Wagstaff and Doyle) are part 

of the special needs resource base network across Monmouthshire, which brings together 

professionals from ALN, our service and each of the bases to develop the training and skills to 

support our children with the most complex needs. When a child has a statement of special 

educational needs, we are often involved with those children who attend a school outside the 

Page 60



 

 

county, whether it is being part of reviews, updating support. These can be some of our most 

complex cases. We have a high level of work in supporting those children, with the ALN team 

and other colleagues such as Social Care, to ensure that placements are appropriate, staff are 

well trained, and the quality of education is what we would want for them. 

 

The hubs are based in the state schools, but is the same support available to non-state 

schools? 

 

Our service would get involved at an individual level, i.e. if there were an individual training need 

around a Monmouthshire child at one of those schools. The process we go through before 

placing a child in an out-of-county school is extensive. The team will be heavily involved in 

working with the school, parents and health professionals to arrive at a diagnosis that leads to a 

statement of ALNs. We then go through an extensive process by which we commission a place 

in a special school for that child, if we can’t meet their needs in one of the special needs 

resource bases in county. We review their statement annually, in consultation with the schools. 

Although sometimes specific training might be needed, the whole purpose of the process is to 

put the child in a school whereby the school provides that support and education – it would be 

unusual, therefore, for us to provide significant training into independent special schools, as 

that’s the very thing that we commission in the first instance. 

 

Have we been able to target the schools attended by children from the most deprived 

households? 

 

Resilience is not fixed. While there are many children who experience difficult home lives, and 

extra risk factors, one of the protective factors is the relationships and support that children get 

from schools. So while we can’t change a lot of those home-based factors, schools can do a lot 

to develop and build resilience. Two weeks ago, we did training that was available for all staff 

across the schools, in which the focus was building resilience following the pandemic. There 

were a lot of resources and materials that schools took away, and they all found the training 

very helpful. Our schools have an identified link EP who is in communication to discuss 

particular groups of children who might have particular needs.  

 

There has been a 6-month regression in maths for our Year 7 pupils in King Henry VIII – if we 

go into a further lockdown, do we risk losing a generation of education? 

 

Children regress during the summer holidays anyway, so it’s natural for a long closure to have 

had an impact. Child Services has done some work with Sharon Randall-Smith relating to the 

‘Closing the Gap’ grant from Welsh Government, and works with schools to develop children 

holistically, so that they have the confidence and other capacities when it comes to trying to 

close the gap. 

Sharon Randall-Smith: We have been working with EPs to look at how we can use some of our 

funding for accelerated learning provision, to support learners who have moved from Yr 6 into 

Yr 7 that we have identified as struggling a little bit. We have looked at how we will assist 

schools in their accelerated learning plan, where they have additional staff to focus particularly 

Page 61



 

 

on literacy and numeracy, to accelerate that progress over the next six months, to close the gap 

as much as possible. 

 

Parents congregating at school gates are a problem. Is there a way in which we can intervene 

as an authority? 

We agree that parents need to model the behaviours that we expect children to follow. The 

school sites are very clear about movement flows and social distancing. To try to ease the 

parents gathering in certain places we are looking at road closures in some schools; if 

successful, we will roll those out further. Beyond that, the relationship between headteachers 

and parents is critical, but the message would be stronger coming from Headteachers 

themselves. We have discussed the matter with Heads in the last few meetings, and we will 

take this point to the Enterprise and Operations teams to see if there is anything further that we 

can do. 

 

How are you managing to do your work with the Covid restrictions? 

 

We have been, and are still, going into schools where it is essential, based on Welsh 

Government’s guidance – this is a bit vague, so we always take a person-centred approach, 

looking at the individual circumstances. In some instances, parents are perfectly capable of 

participating in a Teams meeting with other professionals; this has been quite positive. But in 

other instances, we need to have those meetings in schools, in line with risk assessments. We 

try to do as much of our work as possible online. Our schools, professionals and parents have 

been fantastic in taking that up.  

 

How are the ELSAs managing to go in without breaking the bubbles? 

 

This depends, again, on individual schools and how they use their ELSAs. There is a strong 

demand from schools to have more ELSAs trained, and we are looking at the national network 

as to how that can be done, as it is usually face-to-face. Some schools manage their ELSAs 

within bubbles – they will remain in these over a period of time. In some schools, this has been 

an issue, which is why they want more ELSAs, effectively one per bubble. Each school has their 

own risk assessment, which will affect how they use their ELSAs. 

 

Chair’s Summary: 

The Committee is very grateful to the officers for their work, especially during this time. We have 

discussed the importance of the four special needs bases in supporting vulnerable learners, and 

the service’s support to all children with statements. Resilience is a difficult concept and very 

important at this time for children and staff: if staff are not resilient, they will not be able to pass 

that resilience on to the children. The links between primary and secondary are important, and 

there is more of a danger of children regressing now than in normal circumstances. We are glad 

to hear of all the ongoing support. Parents congregating continues to be a problem, and we 

hope that the authority implements measures such as road closures. The ongoing ELSA work is 

very important, and we appreciate how difficult it is to provide in-person support in the schools. 

We need to always bear in mind the teachers who are on the frontline. 

Page 62



 

 

 
7. Blended Learning in Schools   

 
Sharon Randall-Smith presented the report and answered the Members’ questions, with 

additional responses from Will Mclean. 

 

Challenge: 

Recent research from the National Foundation for Education Research shows Wales bottom for 

the effectiveness of learning at home. What is being done to address this? 

Longitudinal studies show that, over time, there is not as great a difference between learning 

face-to-face and distanced learning as was originally thought. As always, the impact and 

effectiveness will be from the quality of the teaching. Since lockdown, EAS has supported our 

schools with a lot of advice and access to research and a range of professional learning, 

including the general skills that teachers and teaching assistants need to develop and deliver 

effective blended learning. Also, how to audit their skills, consider what good distanced learning 

looks like, and maintaining good professional learning to support that. Teaching assistants in 

one school have been heavily engaged in that, and are now disseminating it across other local 

clusters. In addition, as a region we are developing a Quality Assurance toolkit that will help 

schools to identify where their strengths and weaknesses are, but also evaluate what that 

quality begins to look like. Compared perhaps to other regions, we have made great strides in 

determining what the quality looks like. 

One piece of research by the Education Policy Institute last week picked up the number of 

contacted hours during lockdown in Wales, recognising that the steps Wales had taken in 

providing IT kit was the best of the four nations. There was a range of different measures in the 

report that were differential, depending on which one was being considered. Hopefully, we can 

take both pieces of research together and learn from them. 

 

Has there been an assessment of how well FSM children are doing compared to non-FSM 

children? And how much homework is being completed compared with the norm pre-Covid? 

 

During the summer term, schools were very keen to track the engagement of all learners, with a 

particular focus on vulnerable and FSM pupils. Schools maintained regular contact to ensure 

that they had the necessary equipment, information and support. For vulnerable learners not 

engaging quite so well, we looked at engaging through attendance at hubs, or different kinds of 

support that we could give them. Certainly, we are tracking FSM pupils and engagement 

closely. We have meetings soon with schools to go through their development plans, and to 

look at their Accelerated Learning plans, as to how those will support the FSM pupils. Much of 

the best learning is the feedback given to pupils – that is still very possible with a distanced or 

blended learning model. Some schools have been using a technique called Blip learning: where 

a lot of learning happens independently or in small groups, and then brought to a general 

classroom for the teacher to give feedback. The feedback is therefore more positive and 

immediate for the learners. Very early on, teachers were trying to give formal feedback the way 

they always had, which became overwhelming for students and teachers. Over time, they have 

Page 63



 

 

made things more manageable and effective. There will be some online assessments but they 

won’t be the best and most effective way of learning. 

 

Given everything that is happening, is there an argument to be made for delaying 

implementation of the new curriculum? 

 

Blended learning is the best way forward for us to deliver the curriculum so that children have 

the opportunity to develop those skills through a range of contexts, to make learning realistic for 

themselves and benefit from it. The process has been accelerated a little earlier than we 

thought; we understand the curriculum seems to be coming towards schools very quickly. But, 

whether schools are expected to be up and running perfectly at that point, given the current 

circumstances, is quite unlikely. That point was stressed in a recent survey. A lot of work has 

already been done by schools in moving forward with delivery of the new curriculum, but we 

accept that it isn’t going to be perfect; in fact, it likely wouldn’t have been even if we hadn’t had 

the pandemic. This period has given our schools, and particularly clusters, the opportunity to 

share resources; for example, one cluster has a shared database, to which examples of practice 

and resources are uploaded for everyone. This makes the process more manageable. 

 

The fifty five ‘mandatory’ references in the bill are seemingly opposed to the general approach 

of local curricula; by contrast, the Education Act of 1996 had no references to ‘mandatory’. 

 

This is an understandable point. When we, as a region, reviewed our view on the curriculum 

and whether it should continue as it is, we also looked at responses from headteachers, trade 

unions, secondary head groups, etc. to understand how it felt being in school delivering it. Most 

felt that the flexibility with which schools work now was supportive, and the flexibility in the new 

curriculum enables them to make learning experiences valuable and worthwhile. 

 

Chair’s Summary: 

We have had reassurance about blended learning. It is set to continue, so the better schools 

become at delivering it, and the more support that the authority can give, the better. Interesting 

points were raised about NFER, which we might consider in the future, and the issue of FSM 

pupils’ performance – about which this committee is always concerned. Perhaps pupils from a 

more supportive background find blended learning a bit easier. We are keen to track the 

engagement of learners. Issues were raised about distanced learning; this committee will come 

back to that. We heard concerns about the new curriculum, but we have been reassured about 

the flexibility of schools’ approaches. 

 
8. Children and Young People Select Committee Forward Work Programme  

 
An extra meeting is proposed for November, in which to cover an update on the former pupils of 

Mounton House, and ALN provision in the authority. The meeting in December will cover a 

paper on homelessness and a review of Play Provision. We also need to cover Welsh provision 

in Monmouth: it is proposed that this is also covered in the December meeting. 

 

Page 64



 

 

Officer Will Mclean questioned the validity of covering the former pupils of Mounton House, as it 

has been addressed previously, and the matter concluded. Councillor Brown suggested that an 

update would be beneficial to the committee, fitting in with scrutinising ALN provision, and they 

would be interested to hear about the different approaches e.g. alternative living in Newport. 

Officer Mclean welcomed detailed scrutiny of ALN but expressed concern that following up on 

the progress of former Mounton House pupils would potentially violate their anonymity. 

Councillor Groucott asked for regular updates regarding Welsh provision in Abergavenny. 

Officer Mclean agreed and noted that the item in December would cover broader aspects of 

Welsh provision, not strictly limited to Monmouth. 

 
9. Council and Cabinet Work Plan  

 
10. To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on 8th September 2020  

 
The minutes were confirmed and signed as an accurate record. 

 
11. To confirm the date and time of the next meeting  

 
8th December 2020 was confirmed as the date of the next meeting, pending confirmation of a 

meeting in November. 

 
 

The meeting ended at 1.46 pm  
 

 

Page 65



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66


	Agenda
	6 Children and Young People Select Committee Forward Work Plan
	7 Council and Cabinet Work Planner
	8 To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting
	Minutes


